
Additional Questions and Answers to R-01 (Cipriani Dolci) 

September 12, 2018 

You are receiving this email because you expressed interest in the MTA’s Request for Proposals for R-01.  Please 

find below the answers to questions that were asked during the site visit and in follow up emails.  

 

1. In regards to the HVAC ducts: Can the Tenant use the former existing systems for the Great Hall for 

supply air?   

If the Tenant wishes to use the HVAC which is supplied to the Main Concourse, the Tenant will 

need to specify which vents/systems, and identify proposed options with their plan submittal.  

2. Does Grand Central enforce New York State or New York City standards? Does the Tenant need to follow 

Green Building Council Standards as per the GCT Design Criteria?  

 

Grand Central enforces New York State standards. Yes, the Tenant needs to follow LEED Green 

Building Council Standards.  

 

3. The current attachment 2 includes part of the MTA closet within the dashed LOD  plan and the red dotted 

bathroom location.  If part of the closet does remain are we allowed to remove the wall between the 

closet and the vestibule?  Why is the tenant to pay for this work and what cost control do we have over 

this work? There is a lot of electrical relocations required to perform this work are we responsible for 

those costs as well? 

 

The Tenant is responsible for the costs associated with this work, but Metro-North (MNR) forces 

will perform this work. Estimate will be provided when available.    

 

4. Is the Tenant able to give prior approval from SHPO that the doors from the entry vestibule to the 

bathroom can be modified and that core drilling is allowed?  

 

Yes, the MTA has spoken with SHPO regarding the planned changes to the entry vestibule doors. It 

will still be subject to final review with formal plan approvals. 

 

5. Is it accurate that all work completed outside of Tenant’s premises is to be completed by MNR forces and 

that this includes all plumbing lines that will be run below the floor for drains and waste lines? 

Yes, all work outside of Tenant lease lines will be MNR work unless released by MNR at Tenant’s 

expense.  

 

 



6. Who is responsible for cleaning the existing kitchen exhaust duct so it can be welded safely? Is the 

existing Fire Suppression System outside of the leased space to be inspected and certified by Landlord? 

The regular cleaning schedule will be completed by JLL (GCT Management). If welding is 

required, Tenant’s contractor will be responsible for a clean and safe welding surface. The 

sprinkler system within the duct system is base building, they maintain the system.  

7. In regards to a 2” vent code and compliance for a 4” waste line, will the Landlord deliver what is 

required by code at Landlord expense if this is mandatory by code? 

The 2” vent is in place within Tenant’s space. In regards to the 4” sanitary waste line, MNR is 

responsible for below slab work at Tenant’s expense, this will be by code and to be designed by 

Tenant’s design team.  

8. Does the RFP supersede all GCT Design Criteria? 

What is currently located within the space and what is mentioned within the Design Criteria may 

be two different things, but what is stated within the RFP will be what is to be delivered to Tenant’s 

premises.  

9.    In regards possession date, can the Tenant assume that possession is contingent upon the issuance of a 

permit from MNR including all approvals from SHPO?  

Possession of the premises will be arranged with the Tenant. It is up to the Tenant to formally 

submit their plans and drawings to MNR with ample time for approvals prior to the arranged 

possession date.  

10.    Is there a detailed description on what would be required for a barricade during construction?  

Please see attached for description.  

11.     In regards to the doors to the South Stair, are these planned to be changed? Can these doors be 

locked? 

These doors cannot be locked and the door swing must remain as-is.  

12.     In regards to fire alarm work, is the Tenant to assume all protection of the ceiling of the Terminal is 

work already done or to be completed by MNR? We are not to include any beam detectors or any ceiling 

mounted devices or any smoke baffles in the front of house area?   

Smoke beam detection is required within the Tenant’s premises.  

13. Can the Tenant present two scenarios showing the removal of the platform and/or maintaining of a raised 

floor? 

Yes, it is only mandatory to install an ADA compliant bathroom in the Tenant’s proposed plans.  

 



14.     Is the bid for the Taxi Stand space separate from the bid for the restaurant space?   

Yes, the Taxi Stand will be made available through a separate seasonal license. The rent and terms 

of this agreement are to be determined and subject to change.  

15.     Is the bid for the Taxi Stand occupied by Campbell Apartment available in the bid?  

The Taxi Stand space associated with R-01 will be different than that currently used by Campbell 

Apartment.  

16.     If we take possession of the Taxi Stand space, is the Tenant allowed to winterize the space at their own 

expense?   

Plans for the Taxi Stand space are subject to review and approval by MTA and MNR forces.  

  






